
 

 

1 
 

 

City of Rainier 
Regular City Council Meeting 

April 5, 2021 
6 p.m. 

Rainier City Hall 

 
 

Mayor Jerry Cole called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 6 p.m. 

 
Council Present: Connie Budge, Robert duPlessis, Mike Kreger, Levi 

Richardson       
 
Council Absent:  Richard Sanders, Brenda Tschida, Jenna Weaver 

 
City Attorney Present: No 

 
City Staff Present: Sarah Blodgett, City Recorder; Gregg Griffith, Police 
Chief; W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator; Sue Lawrence, Public Works 

Director 
  

Flag Salute 

 
Additions/Deletions from the Agenda: Public Works Director Sue Lawrence 

said she would like to add a Geotech study to the agenda. Mayor Jerry Cole 
said that could be item 7i under new business. Council President Mike Kreger 
moved to add Geotech study to the agenda. That motion was seconded by 

Budge and adopted unanimously.  
 

Mayor’s Address: Cole and Rainier Junior/Senior High School Teacher 
Andrew Demko presented awards to Rho Kappa National Social Studies 
Honor Society Seniors Chloe Buck, Reese Schimmel, Alexis Crape, Kylie Cook 

and Jenna Kamppi. Sylvia Nation was honored as the History Club Student 
of the Year. History Club Officers of the Year Brandon Hayward, Haillie 
Schafner and Hunter Gutenberger were also honored. Cole read a 

proclamation of April as HOPE month.  
 

Visitor Comments: Dan Kloppman from the Rainier Community Church of 
God thanked the city for allowing services in the park last summer. He said 
the congregation would be willing to volunteer to paint the bathrooms to give 

back to the community. Cole asked Kloppman to coordinate that with 
Lawrence and asked if there were any plans to do services in the park this 

summer. Kloppman said there might be, and Cole said the congregation 
would be welcome to use the park facilities.  
 

Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda: 



 

 

2 
 

Consider Approval of the March 1, 2021 Regular Council Meeting and 
March 9, 2021 Council Goal Setting Work Session Minutes and January 

13, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes—Kreger moved to 
approve the consent agenda. That motion was seconded by Councilor 

Connie Budge and adopted unanimously.  
 
New Business 

e. Forestry Contract Discussion—Cole said that City Forester Byron   
    Rickert moved to Central Oregon. Rickert notified Cole of his pending  
    move six months ago. Cole asked him to try and find a replacement.  

    Rickert is suggesting that Patrick McCoy take over as the city’s forester.  
    His family lives in town and owns McCoy Logging. McCoy has a degree  

    in forestry. Cole wanted to introduce him to the council tonight, but  
    McCoy is out of town. He will be able to make it to the council’s May  
    meeting. Cole is looking for approval for staff to draw up a contract with  

    McCoy. Rickert will help in the transition. He and McCoy have a similar  
    mindset regarding the city’s watershed—they want to manage what can  

    be harvested. Rickert said he’s managed the watershed for 15 years and  
    lived in town for 45 years. He’s moved to Redmond to be closer to his  
    grandchildren and spent the last two years looking for a replacement.  

    Rickert wants the watershed to have a sustainable forest that can  
    provide income to the city. McCoy and his father both did millwork at  
    Longview Fiber and his philosophy matches what the city wants. McCoy  

    wants to give back to the community. The watershed is 1500 acres and  
    no more than two percent of it is harvested each year for a 50-year  

    rotation. That’s between 22 and 26 acres per year, which raises about  
    $200,000 per year for the city’s timber fund. Harvests are usually done  
    in August and September. A planting was done four weeks ago for the  

    area that was harvested last year. If council agrees to contract with   
    McCoy, Rickert can spend a day with him going over the areas planned  
    for harvest over the next few years. Timber prices are high right now  

    and that’s a good opportunity for the city to generate revenue. Anything  
    harvested this year will be ready to be re-planted. Kreger moved to direct  

    staff to generate a contract with McCoy. That motion was seconded by  
    Councilor Levi Richardson and adopted unanimously.  

 

    Unfinished Business 
a. Riverfront Trail Update—Lawrence said the project is almost 

completed. The next phase will involve asphalting, once the weather 
improves. She and the contractor are looking at bank stabilization. 
The city will save around $6,000 by not doing electrical work along 

the trail. Cole said the city should go with solar lighting instead 
because it’s one-third of the cost. The city is wrapping up obtaining 
an easement from the Eagles Lodge. They didn’t want their deck 

altered and the new design avoids doing that. The city gave the Eagles 
a letter saying as much.  



 

 

3 
 

b. Fox Creek Update—City Administrator W. Scott Jorgensen said he 
spoke with Rep. Brad Witt about obtaining state funds to pay for the 

feasibility study and sent his office much documentation and 
information about it.  

c. Senior Housing—Cole said there will be a committee for ideas for the  
property past the Senior Center that could include senior housing. He 
took a field trip to the site, along with Budge, Jorgensen and Mike 

Avent. The committee can be formed in May or June. Jorgensen said 
he put together a crude drawing of a basic concept on a map after the 
site visit. Budge said the idea started with an RV park concept. 

Councilor Robert duPlessis said he would like to be on the committee. 
Jorgensen suggested Planning Commissioner Paul Langner as a 

possible member. Cole said Randy Johnston wanted to be involved.  
 

    New Business 

a. Reimbursement Request for Maple Drive Tree Removal—Cole suggested  
that this item be moved to Unfinished Business for the council’s May 

meeting. A property owner had requested reimbursement for removal 
of a tree in the city’s right of way and Cole told her she could make her 
case to the council.  

b. Estuary Partnership Presentation—Samantha DuMont described the  
organization as an environmental non-profit that does work in 
Washington and Oregon, from the Bonneville Dam to the mouth of the 

Columbia. Estuary Partnership engages communities and does large-
scale restoration projects with schools and volunteers. The organization 

did some work on Fox Creek in 2019. It involved planting 3600 trees 
and shrubs and reducing the number of invasive species. Around 91 
percent of those new plants have survived. Estuary Partnership would 

like to enhance habitat and the riparian buffer along Fox Creek. The 
organization uses funds through the Oregon Watershed Enhancement 
Board to fund its projects in Oregon, and the focus is on restoration. 

Kreger moved to authorize Estuary Partnership to do work in the 
proposed area on the other side of Fox Creek. That motion was 

seconded by Richardson and adopted unanimously.   
c. Planning Commission, Budget Committee and Parks Committee  
    Appointments—Cole said he and Jorgensen discussed the best way to  

    go about making the appointments. He directed Jorgensen to draft a  
    memo with recommendations, which was presented to council. Budge  

    moved to appoint Mike Avent, Scott Cooper, Dena Nordstrom, Jeremy  
    Howell and Ethan Pearson to the Budget Committee. That motion was  
    seconded by Kreger and adopted unanimously. Cole said the city  

    received more applications than there were spots originally set up for  
    the committee. But there’s no ordinance governing how many Parks  
    Committee members there have to be. He also suggested that the  

    committee could be the Parks, Recreation and Education Committee.  
    



 

 

4 
 

   Budge moved to expand the committee to include recreation and  
   Education. That motion was seconded by Kreger and adopted  

   unanimously. Budge move to appoint Randall Johnston, Jason Nulph,  
   Sharon Jump, Tiffany Hatley, Kristi Cole, Gary Bice, Terry Deaton, Scott  

   Cooper, Denise Watson and Laura Trethaway to the committee. That  
   motion was seconded by Kreger and adopted unanimously. Cole said  
   there were four applicants for the vacant Planning Commission position.  

   Jorgensen summarized his recommendation. Kreger moved to appoint  
   Trethaway to the Planning Commission. That motion was seconded by  
   duPlessis and adopted unanimously. Budge moved to appoint Deaton to  

   the REDCO Budget Committee. That motion was seconded by Kreger  
   and adopted unanimously. Jorgensen said that the Budget Committee  

   meetings need to be scheduled. Cole suggested having REDCO Budget  
   Committee meet from 5 to 5:30 and Budget Committee meet from 5:30  
   to 7 p.m. on May 10 and 17th at the Masonic Lodge. Council agreed by  

   consensus. 
         d. Oregon Government Ethics Commission Statements of Economic  

             Interest—Cole reminded councilors that the statements are due by April     
             15. 
 f. Potential West A Street Housing Development Committee—This was  

             already discussed under the Senior Housing section of Unfinished  
             Business.  

g. 526 East E Street—duPlessis said the actual address of the property is  

    516 East E Street; he went by there earlier in the day. Cole provided  
    background on the house and the fire that took place there last year.  

    Jorgensen said he received a complaint. He called the restoration  
    company whose number is listed on the sign in front. They didn’t have  
    any additional work scheduled for the site. He called the county and  

    they indicated some permits had been pulled for work on the house.  
    The county gave him the contact information for the owner and he tried  
    to call but it always goes straight to voicemail. Cole said the city has the  

    ability to declare a house to be dangerous and derelict if the owner does  
    not take care of it. The city can eventually put a lien on the property if  

    nothing is done to clean it up. Kreger moved to direct staff to move   
    forward with declaring the house a dangerous property. That motion  
    was seconded by Budge and adopted unanimously.  

h. Vac Trailer Lease—Lawrence said public works has been using a vac  
    trailer that was loaned to the city. It costs $93,000 to purchase, but  

    there is also an option to lease it. Leasing it would cost around $1800  
    per month. Cole asked if it is within the city’s budget. Lawrence said  
    she can budget it in over the next five years. Cole asked if there’s money  

    for it in the budget, is Lawrence confident she can budget for future  
    years without using the general fund. Lawrence confirmed that she  
    wouldn’t have to take it out of the general fund. She added that it costs  

    more to lease than purchase the vac trailer and would prefer to  



 

 

5 
 

purchase it. Cole said the city could loan itself money from the timber 
fund and then pay it back. duPlessis moved to authorize the purchase 

of the vac trailer using the timber fund, with a repayment over five years 
with two percent interest. That motion was seconded by Kreger and 

adopted unanimously.  
          i. Geotech Study—Lawrence said a portion of First Street is sliding and  
             getting worse. She had engineers come and look at it and recommends  

             doing a Geotech study. It will cost around $34,000. The city has a water  
             line, sewer line and culvert under that part of the street and they are all  
             threatened by the sliding. The Geotech study was not budgeted for. The  

             city is still awaiting final costs of the A Street project from the Oregon  
        Department of Transportation (ODOT). Staff met with ODOT the other  

        day to discuss that. The sliding on First Street is an emergency. Cole  
        said that doing nothing is not an option. Jorgensen was asked for his  

    recommendation. He said the city does have some contingency funds  

    that could be used to fund the Geotech study. Lawrence confirmed that  
    there is $39,000 in the street contingency fund. Budge moved to  

    authorize the expenditure of $34,000 from the street contingency fund  
    to conduct the Geotech study. That motion was seconded by Kreger and  
    adopted unanimously.  

 
  Staff Report-Jorgensen said he submitted a grant application for funding 

a water master plan update to Business Oregon. He and Lawrence met 

with representatives of the museum to coordinate the April 10 event 
commemorating city hall’s 100-year anniversary. A news release has been 

sent out to promote it and he invited county, state and federal officials to 
it. Along with Cole, he toured the KLTV studios in Longview. The two of 
them appeared on that station’s Local Matters program. He and City 

Attorney Steve Petersen negotiated the cell tower lease agreement. On 
March 11, he was appointed to represent the city on the Col-Pac board of 
directors and attended the Rainier Chamber of Commerce meeting. He’s 

been working with Petersen and Rickert on transitioning the contract for 
the city’s forestry services. On March 18, he and Lawrence met with 

officials from the railroad and ODOT about how to present cars from 
crossing portions of A Street only intended for pedestrians. He’s attended 
a couple of meetings about a grant that the county received to install bike 

hubs at various locations, including the city’s main park. Jorgensen, 
Budge, Cole and Avent toured the nine-acre property at the end of A Street 

to visualize potential future residential and mixed use development there. 
He purchased the rest of the microphones for the council chambers, 
attended a League of Oregon Cities meeting for local leaders and has been 

talking with Rep. Witt’s office about state funding for the Fox Creek 
feasibility study. Lawrence said that ODOT has offered to install bollards 
at some of the A Street intersections to discourage drivers from crossing 

where they shouldn’t. ODOT also did some noise monitoring near the 
intersection of C and 11th, where the new stop sign was installed. There 



 

 

6 
 

was a difference of one decibel. Public works staff has thus far installed 
450 of the new water meters around town.  

 
Council Reports-There were no council reports at this time.   

 
    City Calendar/Announcements 
  

          Cole adjourned the meeting at 8:22 p.m.  
   
 

_____________________________              ______________________________________ 
Mayor Jerry Cole                         W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



TITAN TREE CARE, LLC Owner/Estimator 


CUSTOMER INFORMATION :


NAME: 


ADDRESS:


EMAIL ADDRESS:


PHONE:

DORIAN GRAFF

CRYSTAL DERBY

Main Office

360-747-3712

doriantitangraff@gmail.com

503-841-9788

We hereby propose to furnish the materials and perform the labor necessary for the completion of the following: 

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL


All work is guaranteed as specified, and the above work is to be performed in accordance to discussion, and as 
specifications outlined above inquire. All work will be completed in a professional, and substantial workmanlike 
manner. Payments are accepted in the form of cash and/or check. If necessary we can arrange payment plans prior 
to completion of job. Our payment option is a plan over the course of 6 months with 10% fee added to the overall 
total and a 15% late payment fee for missed or late payments. 


The above specifications, prices, and conditions are satisfactory, and are hereby accepted. Titan Tree Care, LLC is 
authorized to do the work as specified, and payments will be made as outlined above and discussed. 


Signature                                                             .


Signature                                                             .

Date                                  . 


Date                                  . 

TOTAL : 

Lic./Bond/Ins.

Oregon CCB # 219736


Washington CCB # TITANTC826K1

Susiehancock@outlook.com

$1800

Take down 3 maple trees 
Chip and haul all brush 
Leave wood in 16” rounds 

30068 Maple Dr
Rainier, OR, United States

3609572086

Susie Hancock

Receipt

Paid in full

4/6/21











TERMINATION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACT FORESTRY CONSULTANT  

 

Dated May 3, 2021, the parties, the City of Rainier and Byron C. Rickert, aka CBR Forestry 

LLC, wish to mutually terminate the Forest Management Contract, a copy of which is attached 

hereto. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, this Contract shall be terminated effective May 3, 2021. 

 

 

______________________________  __________ 

City of Rainier     Date 

 

 

______________________________  ___________ 

Byron C. Rickert     Date 















Intergovernmental   Agreement   (IGA)  
July   1,   2020-June   30,   2021  
 
Intergovernmental   Agreement   between   the   City   of   Rainier   (hereinafter   referred   to   as   “City”)   and  
the   Rainier   School   District   #13   (hereinafter   referred   to   as   “District”)   providing   the   contracted  
service   to   manage   the   City   of   Rainier’s   Library.  
 
The   Purpose   of   this   agreement   is   to   contract   the   general   management   and   daily   operation   of  
the   City   Library.   The   District   will   follow   all   Federal,   State,   and   City   regulations,   policies,  
procedures,   while   providing   the   following   services:  
 

● The   library   will   operate   32   hours   a   week   during   the   academic   school   year,   including  
Saturday   hours   of   operation,   providing   management   of   the   library   with   District  
employees   and   community   volunteers.   All   volunteers   will   have   a   required   background  
check   through   the   District’s   system,   with   additional   approval   by   the   Library   Board.  
Summer   hours   will   be   determined   by   June   14,   2020   and   the   library   will   be   open   at   least  
25   hours   a   week   during   the   summer   months.  
 

● Library   supplies   and   equipment   needed   to   run   the   library   will   be   requisitioned   by   the  
District   staff   through   the   regular   City   Library   Fund   budget   as   per   City   purchasing  
procedures.  
 

● The   District   will   actively   seek   out   community   partners   and   various   state   and   federal  
grants   to   bring   in   additional   revenue   for   the   operation   of   the   library.   Any   additional  
revenue   or   donations   received   will   be   run   through   the   City’s   policies   and   procedures.  

 
● Citizens   of   the   Rainier   School   District   community   that   do   not   live   in   the   City   limits   will   be  

able   to   purchase   a   rural   library   pass   for   $15.00   per   year,   per   family.   A   private   donation  
fund   will   be   established   to   waive   the   cost   of   this   fee   if   the   citizen   cannot   afford   the   rural  
library   pass   fee.   When   visiting   the   City   Library   on   special   field   trips,   students   of   the  
District   will   be   allowed   to   access   the   library’s   resources   free   of   charge,   and   the   District  
will   assume   responsibility   for   any   lost   or   stolen   items   as   a   result   of   these   visits.   
 

● The   District   will   transport   and   conduct   various   City   Library   field   trips   throughout   the  
school   year   in   order   for   the   students   of   the   District   to   utilize   the   resources   of   the   City  
Library.   All   transportation   expenses   for   these   special   field   trips   will   be   covered   by   the  
District.  
 

● The   District   will   conduct   various   summer   programs   throughout   the   summer   to   provide   all  
students   in   the   community   access   to   the   library   during   the   summer   months.   These  
programs   will   be   provided   at   no   additional   costs   to   individual   participants.  
 



● The   District   will   meet   with   the   City   Manager   and   the   Library   Board   for   three   evaluations  
of   the   services   provided.   These   evaluation   meetings   will   be   in   June   and   October   of  
2020,   and   March   of   2021.   The   District   administration   will   also   update   the   Rainier   School  
Board   on   a   regular   basis   about   the   contracted   services   that   are   being   provided   to   the  
City   Library.   The   District   will   provide   the   City   with   a   data   collection   that   will   consist   of   but  
not   limited   to:   Patron   Count/   Circulation   Count,   Web   Count,   and   Copy   Count.   The  
District   will   work   to   follow   all   state   library   requirements,   including   updating   the   Library  
Plan   and   other   requirements   outlined   by   the   Library   Board   operating   under   the  
governance   of   the   City   Council   and   the   City   Manager.   Additional   services   or   tracking  
information   will   be   provided   as   needed,   after   a   written   request   by   either   party.  
 

● If   any   unforeseeable   circumstances   arise,   either   party   (the   City   or   the   District)   can   seek  
a   release   from   IGA   once   they   provide   the   other   party   90   days   prior   written   notice.  
 

● Both   the   City   and   District   can   meet   and   extend   the   IGA   for   an   additional   time   period   as  
desired.  
 

● The   District   will   strive   to   provide   the   citizens   of   the   entire   Rainier   community   with   a  
welcoming,   safe,   and   service-orientated   library   experience.  
 

● Any   special   training   or   required   library   certifications   for   the   District   employees   working  
under   this   IGA   will   be   covered   by   the   City,   but   prior   written   approval   by   the   City   Manager  
is   required.   

 
Terms:   the   District   will   provide   the   personnel   service   under   this   IGA   for   $52,000   services  
rendered   from   July   1,   2020   to   June   30,   2021.  
 
The   District   will   provide   an   invoice   to   the   City   in   order   to   receive   payment.  
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________  
City   Manager,   City   of   Rainier                                            Date  
 
 
 
__________________________________________________  
Board   Chair,   Rainier   School   District   #13                           Date  









































































BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF RAINIER 

 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING     ) 

A DEQ STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN TO     )  RESOLUTION NO. 21-05-01 

FINANCE SANITARY SEWER LINE IMPROVEMENTS )  

FOR THE ‘A’ STREET PROJECT                ) 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier has entered into negotiations with the State of Oregon  

Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) for a loan and intends to fund the A Street  

Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project with these funds; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City does authorize and approve the SRF loan agreement for the loan amount 

of $824,333 for financing this project; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City intends to dedicate revenue from the Sewer Enterprise Fund to cover the 

debt service and to establish any loan reserve requirement for the SRF loan agreement; and  

 

WHEREAS, upon legal review, the City does authorize and direct the Mayor of Rainier, acting 

for and on behalf of the City, to execute the final SRF loan agreement and such other and 

additional documents as may reasonably be required for the consummation and closing of the 

Loan. 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rainier, Oregon, 

This 3rd day of May, 2021. 

 

 

_____________________________________________  

Jerry Cole 

Mayor of the City of Rainier  

 

Attested: 

 

 

_____________________________________________  

W. Scott Jorgensen 

City Administrator 







CITY OF RAINIER

CASH ON HAND/GENERAL LEDGER RECONCILIATION REPORT

CHECKING ACCOUNTS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT POOL ACCOUNT

3/01/2021-3/31/2021

ACCOUNT REGISTER SUMMARY CKS/DEBITS DEP/CREDITS

Ending Balance 336,494.13

PERS Deposits - 

New Ending Balance 336,494.13 0.00 0.00 336,494.13

BANK STATEMENT SUMMARY CKS/DEBITS DEP/CREDITS

Ending Balance SHCU 760072-1 34,319.01

Ending Balance SHCU 760072-2 439,398.62

Deposits not Shown on Statement 4,746.93

Outstanding Cks and Other Debits 124,275.42

PERS Outstanding 17,695.01

Ending Balance 473,717.63 141,970.43 4,746.93 336,494.13 0.00

LGIP STATEMENT SUMMARY

Beginning Balance 6,134,230.00

Deposits 28,106.45

Withdrawals 300,000.00

Interest 3,084.57

S/C 0.10
Ending Balance 6,134,230.00 300,000.10 31,191.02 5,865,420.92

TOTAL CASH 6,201,915.05

GENERAL LEDGER RECONCILIATION

3/01/2021-3/31/2021

03/01/21 03/31/21

Beginning Total Total Ending

Fund Balance Revenue Expense Liabilities Balance

10 General 2,796,262.26 493,763.04 1,116,228.81 2,173,796.49

20 Debt -560,155.68 924,231.68 0.00 364,076.00

30 Sewer 754,021.84 574,236.72 739,606.82 588,651.74

40 Water 866,292.08 68,775.07 217,086.08 717,981.07

50 Timber 1,265,220.02 0.00 7,661.19 1,257,558.83

60 Street 546,984.68 13,083.31 15,096.05 544,971.94

65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

70 -30.68 30.68 0.00 0.00

81 Special Projects 431,958.65 0.00 62,051.93 369,906.72

83 Sewer Capital -76,804.28 27,172.90 -103,977.18

84 Water Capital 5,874.75 39,946.00 78,052.00 -32,231.25

85 Transportation Capital 226,243.05 0.00 0.00 226,243.05

90 Library Trust 95,349.31 52.11 463.78 94,937.64

0.00 0.00
General Ledger Total 6,351,216.00 6,201,915.05 0.00

Completed by:______ Date:_______ Approved by: ______ Date:________ 



City of Rainier

2020/2021 Budget Year

YTD for 03/31/2020 Income/Expense

Budget Compared to Actual-Major Funds

2020/2021 3/31/2021 3/31/2021

General Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance

*Revenue 1,435,139 1,440,898 100.40%

Expenditures 1,535,139 1,019,715 66.42%

2020/2021 3/31/2021 3/31/2021

Sewer Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance

*Revenue 1,400,821 1,223,483 87.34%

Expenditures 1,629,515 1,197,405 73.48%

2020/2021 3/31/2021 3/31/2021

Water Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance

*Revenue 931,000 730,532 78.47%

Expenditures 1,156,969 616,112 53.25%

2020/2021 3/31/2021 3/31/2021

Timber Fund YTD Actual YTD % Variance

*Revenue 180,000 135,882 75.49%

Expenditures 676,232 46,179 6.83%

2020/2021 3/31/2021 3/31/2021

Street Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance

*Revenue 166,926 259,101 155.22%

Expenditures 569,184 143,520 25.22%

*Excludes Beginning Balance



1535139



City of Rainier

2020/2021 Budget Year

YTD for 03/31/2020

Budget Compared to Actual-Major Funds

Budget Variance by Appropriation

2020/2021 3/31/2021 3/31/2021

General Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance

*Revenue 1,435,139 1,440,898 100.40%

Expenditures

10 General Government 291,194 148,478 50.99%

20 City Building Maintenance 14,500 58,916 406.32%

30 Land Use & Development 25,109 15,702 62.54%

50 Library 62,817 34,496 54.91%

60 Attorney 7,500 4,965 66.20%

70 Finance & Administration 54,041 32,103 59.40%

80 Municipal Court 64,678 37,504 57.98%

90 Public Properties 152,279 71,352 46.86%

100 Police Department 863,021 616,200 71.40%

2020/2021 3/31/2021 3/31/2021

Sewer Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance

*Revenue 1,400,821 1,223,483 87.34%

Expenditures

Personnel Services 451,011 320,737 71.12%

Material & Services 292,700 184,617 63.07%

Capital Outlay 3,000 9,938 331.27%

Transfers 867,990 682,113 78.59%

Contingencies 14,814 0 0.00%

2020/2021 3/31/2021 3/31/2021

Water Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance

*Revenue 931,000 730,532 78.47%

Expenditures

Personnel Services 429,115 306,535 71.43%

Material & Services 191,620 145,503 75.93%

Capital Outlay 3,000 1,738 57.94%

Transfers 487,337 162,336 33.31%

Contingencies 45,897 0 0.00%

2020/2021 3/31/2021 3/31/2021

Timber Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance

*Revenue 180,000 135,882 75.49%

Expenditures

Material & Services 75,100 43,179 57.50%

Capital Outlay 30,500 3,000 9.84%

Contingencies 500,000 0 0.00%

Propery Purchase Reserve 70,632 0 0.00%

2020/2021 3/31/2021 3/31/2021

Street Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance

*Revenue 166,926 259,101 155.22%

Expenditures

Personnel Services 64,636 41,194 63.73%

Material & Services 112,350 80,698 71.83%

Capital Outlay 353,000 21,628 6.13%

Contingencies 39,198 0 0.00%

Transfers 0 0 0.00%

*Excludes Beginning Balance 



Accounts Payable

User:

Printed: 

elisha

4/20/2021  9:34 AM

Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date

Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

3656 Moduform, Inc. 03/02/2021  1,171.059860

 1,171.05Total for 3/2/2021:

066 Airgas USA, LLC 03/09/2021  261.089861

3000 ALS Group USA, Corp. 03/09/2021  340.009862

2220 Baker & Taylor 03/09/2021  463.789863

673 Cintas Corporation 03/09/2021  120.789864

721 Code Publishing 03/09/2021  404.109865

3513 Comcast 03/09/2021  691.179866

3514 Core & Main LP 03/09/2021  459.849867

3574 Correct Equipment, Inc. 03/09/2021  1,618.249868

3521 Cowlitz County Public Works 03/09/2021  84.999869

057 Cowlitz River Rigging Inc 03/09/2021  751.819870

3165 Earth20 03/09/2021  51.479871

3165 Earth20 03/09/2021  25.299872

010 Exhaust Shop & Auto 03/09/2021  21.569873

3145 First Data Global Leasing 03/09/2021  27.949874

762 Footage Tools Inc. 03/09/2021  1,948.859875

3659 Cody Gates 03/09/2021  133.219876

3397 Grumpy's Towing 03/09/2021  410.009877

778 Kenneth Holly 03/09/2021  120.699878

581 Home Depot Credit Services 03/09/2021  231.019879

3332 KRP Data Systems 03/09/2021  240.009880

3332 KRP Data Systems 03/09/2021  240.009881

3023 Bo Laird 03/09/2021  50.009882

3633 LAS Truck Repair LLC 03/09/2021  2,365.559883

3658 LCD Excavation, LLC 03/09/2021  62,051.939884

049 Mallory Company 03/09/2021  172.029885

3644 More Power Computers, Inc. 03/09/2021  2,346.509886

3025 Northstar Chemical, Inc. 03/09/2021  783.009887

615 Oregon Water Resources Dept. 03/09/2021  200.009888

3657 Quadient, Inc. 03/09/2021  465.699890

135 Star Rentals & Sales 03/09/2021  1,176.829891

022 Stephen D. Petersen, LLC 03/09/2021  300.009892

022 Stephen D. Petersen, LLC 03/09/2021  470.009893

3418 Sun Life Financial 03/09/2021  102.189894

2126 Sunset Auto Parts, Inc. 03/09/2021  567.589895

1054 The Automation Group, Inc. 03/09/2021  1,163.009896

030 True Value 03/09/2021  150.379897

458 United States Postal Service 03/09/2021  284.009898

089 USA Blue Book 03/09/2021  1,690.689899

101 V O Printers, Inc 03/09/2021  107.969900

3646 Vortex Idustries, Inc. 03/09/2021  1,324.559901

078 Watkins Tractor & Supply Co 03/09/2021  667.609902

2055 WesTech 03/09/2021  2,694.009903

035 Wilcox & Flegel 03/09/2021  485.629904

Page 1AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (4/20/2021  9:34 AM)

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3656
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=066
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=2220
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=673
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=721
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3513
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3514
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3574
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3521
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=057
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3165
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3165
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3145
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=762
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3659
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3397
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=778
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=581
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3332
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3332
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3023
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3633
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3658
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=049
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3644
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3025
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=615
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3657
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=135
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=022
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=022
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3418
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=2126
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=1054
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=458
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=089
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=101
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3646
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=078
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=2055
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

035 Wilcox & Flegel 03/09/2021  616.229905

052 Wood's Logging Supply, Inc 03/09/2021  22.839906

 88,903.91Total for 3/9/2021:

382 Postmaster 03/12/2021  345.009907

 345.00Total for 3/12/2021:

3314 Vernon Lee Ressler 03/15/2021  6,268.599908

 6,268.59Total for 3/15/2021:

3612 Roberta Boursaw 03/18/2021  45.009909

3614 Brandon Davidson 03/18/2021  120.709910

577 Patricia Stanley 03/18/2021  44.039911

 209.73Total for 3/18/2021:

2232 Advanced Electrical Tech., Inc. 03/25/2021  1,009.819912

818 AT&T Mobility 03/25/2021  104.869913

520 BCX, Inc. 03/25/2021  1,020.009914

3177 Centerlogic, Inc. 03/25/2021  428.009915

673 Cintas Corporation 03/25/2021  540.159916

3506 Columbia 9-1-1 Comm. District 03/25/2021  1,231.609917

690 Columbia County 03/25/2021  5,000.009918

097 Columbia County Treasurer 03/25/2021  101.009919

693 Columbia River Carpet One 03/25/2021  1,250.009920

044 Columbia River PUD 03/25/2021  304.899921

3513 Comcast 03/25/2021  518.729922

3574 Correct Equipment, Inc. 03/25/2021  36,077.559923

1035 DEMCO 03/25/2021  289.989924

3165 Earth20 03/25/2021  36.999925

3165 Earth20 03/25/2021  30.199926

3570 Engraving Emporium Inc. 03/25/2021  650.009927

303 Galls, LLC-DBA Blumenthal Uniform 03/25/2021  4,147.299928

778 Kenneth Holly 03/25/2021  215.519929

3545 InRoads Credit Union 03/25/2021  1,834.739930

3021 Marlin Business Bank 03/25/2021  178.989931

2028 Metro Overhead Door 03/25/2021  730.009932

3619 Mission Communications, LLC 03/25/2021  227.409933

3644 More Power Computers, Inc. 03/25/2021  510.989934

426 NCL of Wisconsin 03/25/2021  172.869935

182 NW Natural 03/25/2021  171.809936

996 Oregon Department of Revenue 03/25/2021  380.009937

766 Payne Reforestation 03/25/2021  3,584.009938

3156 Peck Rubanoff & Hatfield PC 03/25/2021  312.009939

2325 Cynthia L. Phillips 03/25/2021  375.009940

029 Quill Corporation 03/25/2021  210.239941

424 Rainier Chamber of Commerce 03/25/2021  100.009942

096 Rainier Police Department 03/25/2021  217.009943

3354 Rainier School District 03/25/2021  26,000.009944

3080 Ricoh USA, Inc. 03/25/2021  150.339945

3652 SFE Global 03/25/2021  8,325.009946

132 Springbrook SpringbrookHolding Company LLC03/25/2021  19,507.719947

132 Springbrook SpringbrookHolding Company LLC03/25/2021  273.009948

Page 2AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (4/20/2021  9:34 AM)

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=382
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3314
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3612
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3614
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=577
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=2232
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=818
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=520
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3177
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=673
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3506
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=690
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=097
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=693
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3513
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3574
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=1035
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3165
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3165
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3570
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=303
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=778
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3545
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3021
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=2028
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3619
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3644
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=426
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=182
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=996
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=766
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3156
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=2325
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=424
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=096
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3354
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3080
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3652
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=132
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=132


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

132 Springbrook SpringbrookHolding Company LLC03/25/2021  450.009949

135 Star Rentals & Sales 03/25/2021  2,677.059950

211 Superior Tire Services 03/25/2021  476.419951

3567 Michael Taggart 03/25/2021  68.969952

3377 United Site Services 03/25/2021  625.009953

089 USA Blue Book 03/25/2021  76.179954

3512 Verizon 03/25/2021  251.169955

2158 Waterhouse Environmental Services 03/25/2021  3,654.009956

078 Watkins Tractor & Supply Co 03/25/2021  1,827.039957

3653 West Yost & Associates, Inc. 03/25/2021  15,933.869958

035 Wilcox & Flegel 03/25/2021  251.429959

035 Wilcox & Flegel 03/25/2021  659.789960

 143,168.40Total for 3/25/2021:

1123 OR DEPT OF JUSTICE 03/30/2021  627.00ACH

FED TX EFT Federal tax dep 03/30/2021  10,207.90ACH

FICA EFT EE/ER FICA 03/30/2021  11,732.84ACH

Medicare EFT EE/ER Medicare 03/30/2021  2,743.96ACH

OR ST Tx EFT Employee Oregon St Tx 03/30/2021  6,877.66ACH

PERSEE EFT PERS Employee /Employer Pa 03/30/2021  5,313.57ACH

PERSER EFT PERS Employer Paid 03/30/2021  12,413.27ACH

985 AFLAC 03/30/2021  276.489961

077 CIS Trust 03/30/2021  338.449962

3618 Office of the Trustee 03/30/2021  950.009963

ORSGP Oregon Savings Growth Plan 03/30/2021  1,544.009964

079 Oregon Teamster Employer Trust 03/30/2021  28,863.119965

995 Teamsters Local No. 58 03/30/2021  879.009966

 82,767.23Total for 3/30/2021:

Report Total (113 checks):  322,833.91

Page 3AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (4/20/2021  9:34 AM)

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=132
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=135
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=211
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3567
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3377
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=089
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3512
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=2158
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=078
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3653
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=1123
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=FED TX
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=FICA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=Medicare
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=OR ST Tx
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PERSEE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PERSER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=985
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=077
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3618
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ORSGP
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=079
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=995


City Administrator Report 

May 3, 2021 Rainier Council Meeting 

 

Mayor Cole and Members of the Council, 

 

On March 31, I met with Longview Community College President Chris Bailey and Vice President 

Kendra Sprague to discuss possibly recruiting students from its thriving criminology program to help 

bolster the police department’s reserves.  

 

I was the keynote speaker at the Rainier Chamber of Commerce’s April 8 meeting and addressed 

members of the Rainier Oregon Historical Museum right afterward. That was to coordinate for the 100-

year city hall anniversary event that took place April 10. I served as emcee for the socially distanced open 

house, which was a success. 

 

Negotiations for the new union contract for our police officers were held April 12, and I facilitated. I’m 

pleased to report that they took three hours, which included a one-hour lunch break. Later that day, I 

submitted written testimony in support of Rep. Brad Witt’s funding request for $90,000 to $120,000 in 

federal ARPA funds earmarked for Congressional District 1 being allocated to the City for the Fox Creek 

feasibility study.  

 

On April 14, I met with Christopher Efird and Kelly Merritt of NEXT Renewable Fuels at the St. Helens 

Chamber of Commerce. I submitted a grant application the following day to the Cowlitz-Wahkiakum 

Council of Governments for funding for the third phase of the city’s riverfront trail project. A pre-

application conference was held April 15 for a proposed project of three duplexes at 209 A Street.  

 

I submitted a letter of support for federal funding for a Small Business Development Center in Columbia 

County April 19, in coordination with the Columbia County Economic Team. On April 20, I spoke with a 

representative of Comcast about our council meetings being televised on public access.  

 

Over $2 million in federal funding was applied for April 21 for improvements to Veterans Way on April 

21, with the help of Congresswoman Suzanne Bonamici’s office. I also applied for the DEQ loan for the 

A Street closeout that day.  

 

On April 22, I met with Rainier School District Superintendent Joseph Hattrick to discuss the city’s IGA 

with the school district for library services and participated in interview panel for Col-Pac program 

manager position. 

 

Finally, I met with the city’s insurance agent, Chad Womack, April 27, to discuss our policy renewal. 

That night, I went with Mayor Cole and Public Works Director Sue Lawrence to meet with the Eagles to 

obtain their approval for the last easement needed for the riverfront trail project. I attended a League of 

Oregon Cities small cities meeting April 30.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

W. Scott Jorgensen, Executive MPA 

City Administrator 


	5a CC minutes 04052021
	6a Titan Tree Care (195)
	6b Chapter 15.15 Dangerous Buildings
	7a TERMINATION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACT FORESTRY CONSULTANT
	7b Forestry Contract
	7c Rainier City Library and RSD IGA 2020-21
	7d DSL Memo
	7e 59576-SU; 2001 AGREEMENT
	7f IGA
	7g Resolution 21-05-01 DEQ
	7h RV Park Ordinance
	8a March 2021 Reconciliation Report
	8b March Budget Comparison
	8c March Detailed Budget Comparison
	8d March Checks
	8e City Administrator Report

